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August 19, 2025 
 
Jorge Paramo  
Pr. Regulatory Compliance Coordinator 
900 E. Quincy 
San Antonio, Texas 78215 
  
RE: **Updated Counter-Offer Letter** - Notice of EAA General Manager Settlement Offer – Related 
to exceeding annual authorized groundwater withdrawls in 2024 from your Edwards Aquifer Well 
 
Mr. Paramo: 
 
On July 2, 2025, the City of Lytle (“City”) received a letter from the Edwards Aquifer Authority (“EAA”) 
regarding a review of the City’s 2024 Groundwater Use Reporting Form, in which EAA determined that 
the City exceeded the annual groundwater withdrawl amount authorized by EAA. The letter indicated that 
the City reported withdrawing 947.660 acre-feet in 2024, thus exceeding its annual authorization by 
441.389 acre-feet. According to the settlement offer provided in the letter, the City has a few options to 
mitigate the fine incurred for exceeding its authorized water withdrawal for 2024. This letter is the City’s 
response to the settlement offer and notice that the City wishes to exercise Option D (Counter-Offer 
Proposal) in response. 
 
Settlement Option D allows the City to provide evidence of infrastructure issues that can be associated 
with the overpumping of our system and not related to the allowance by individuals to consume water in 
excess of the City’s annual authorized withdrawal amount. Since at least 2023, the City has experienced 
significant leaks and breaks in our system that have resulted in pumping more water than was needed to 
supply its customers, and the City’s public works team have worked diligently to identify and remedy 
leaking or broken water lines. The City has also had contractors during that time hit our lines during 
construction activities, causing significant damage that needed to be addressed, all while water poured 
out, thus contributing to our overpumping, this includes a fiber contractor establishing a fiber network 
throughout the whole City, hitting our lines multiple times. This project happened from end of 2023 
through December 2024. Attached as Exhibit “A” hereto, you will find several invoices that were paid to 
a third-party to address some of these issues, while in addition to this we have been tracking the active 
leaks starting at the end of 2024 to current, and addressing these with our crews as time allows. Since 
October 2024, we have completed at least 20 seperate leak repairs, either by our crews or by a third-party 
contractor.  
 
However, all of these minor to moderate leaks throught the City combined pale in comparison to a major 
leak that was found while investigating our systems usage this April – May 2025. In May 2025, based upon 
the amount of water being used compared to the amount we were billing for consumption, City officials 
had a conversation with City Council regarding possible ways to discover the cause for such a large 
differential between actual vs billed pumping. (Attached hereto as Exhibit “B” is the breakdown that was 
provided to Council for the difference between billed vs pumped water). Following those discussion, the 
Mayor and I discussed with our Public Works Leadership staff the need to ensure no unauthorized taps to 
our system had been completed without our knowledge. During this conversation, we remarked, 
following a major accident on I-35, that the drainage area just to the south of the accident had significant 
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water, which made no sense because of the lack of rainfall for quite some time. The Public Works crew 
decided to investigate as we have a 6-inch waterline that services a small area outside of the City Limits, 
but in our CCN. About 5-10 feet into the brush along I-35 the Public Works Crew found a massive leak on 
our 6-inch line. Based on the location of the pipe, crews would have never found it until that accident had 
occurred, and we began further investigation to explain the presence of a large volume of water where 
there should have been none. 
 
Pictures (attached in Ex. B) of the amount of water that had been flowing from this leak will show that 
this leak had been flowing for quite sometime, without a doubt covering all of 2024 and likely even prior 
years. Immediatley crews began to address this leak and were able to patch it up the evening of May 21, 
2025 the same day that the leak was found. Although addressed in May 2025, the City of Lytle believes 
that this leak contributed to most of the over pumping that occurred in 2024. We come to this conclusion 
by looking at our pumping numbers alone between the month of May 2025 to our recent months 
breakdowns (the month immediately preceeding the fix of the major leak). The City reported in May 2025 
a total of 96.660761 acre-feet (one of the highest for the city in a single month to date) and in June 2025 
the amount pumped was a reported 49.363061 acre-feet -  a 51% percent reduction over a one-month 
time period. 
 
Accordingly, based upon the evidence and events described herein, the City believes that approximately 
50% of the overconsumption that occurred in 2024 can be attributed solely to infrastructure defects which 
have since been remedied, with the bulk of overconsumption being attributable to the single, major leak 
discovered and repaired in May 2025.  If the 50% reduction is used this would result in the City being 
under our pumping limits for the year. As such, the City respectfully submits a counter-offer to EAA to not 
have to pay a settlement based upon the facts outlined in this letter. In summary, we hope that the 
evidence provided to the maintenance of the City of Lytle water system will provide the Aquifer and its 
Board significant proof that the City is trying to maintain compliance at all costs, and has taken steps to 
identify and repair infrastructure defects which have previously caused overpumping of water but should 
not be an issue for the remainder of 2025 and subsequent years. We will continue to strive to ensure we 
have an adequate system and provide potable drinking water from the aquifer to residents and business 
within our community. We believe we have turned a corner as it relates to ensuring our pumping stays 
within the allowable limits given to us by the EAA.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Zachary Meadows 
City Administrator 
City of Lytle 






























